
 

 

 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

216 Walnut Street 

Agenda - Monday, November 18, 2019 - 6:00 PM 

 

 

Call to Order 

Roll Call 

Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance given by Director Barbara S. Miner 

CONSENT 

1. Approval of the minutes of the regular meeting November 4, 2019.  (CCD) 

2. Adopt a Resolution reappointing Personnel Administrator Melissa Edwards and Assistant 

Public Works Director Tracie Lee to the Public Facilities Board. (CCD) 

REGULAR 

3. Adopt a Resolution approving the FY 2020 Budget. (FIN) Finance Director TyRhonda 

Henderson  

CITIZEN COMMUNICATION 

NEXT MEETING DATE: Monday, December 2, 2019 

ADJOURN 

 

2019 City Calendar 

Gateway Farmer’s Market Thanksgiving Market - Saturday, November 23, 2019 

35th Annual Christmas Parade - Monday, December 9, 2019 

Gateway Farmer's Market Christmas Market - Saturday, December 14, 2019 

Juneteenth Celebration - Saturday, June 27, 2020 

  



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Approval of the minutes of the regular meeting November 4, 2019.  

(CCD) 

AGENDA DATE: November 18, 2019 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☐  Other☒: Minutes 

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

REQUEST: Approval of meeting minutes. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: No 

SUMMARY: Approval of meeting minutes. 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

The City Clerk recommends approval. 

EXHIBITS: Meeting minutes. 

 



 

 

 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

216 Walnut Street 

Minutes - Monday, November 04, 2019 - 6:00 PM 

 

Mayor Allen Brown called the meeting to order. 

PRESENT: Mayor Allen Brown, Ward 1 Assistant Mayor Linda Teeters, Ward 2 Director 

Laney J. Harris, Ward 3 Director Steven Hollibush, Ward 4 Director Travis Odom, Ward 5 

Director Barbara S. Miner, and Ward 6 Director Terri Peavy. 

ALSO PRESENT: City Manager Dr. Kenny Haskin, City Attorney George Matteson, City 

Clerk Heather Soyars and Deputy City Clerk Jenny Narens. 

Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance given by Mayor Allen Brown 

PRESENTATION(S) 

1. Presentation of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas Employee Service Awards. (CCD) 

Mayor Brown acknowledged Melissa Edwards for 5 years of service with the Finance Department 

and Brian Nolte for 10 years of service with the Public Works Department. 

CONSENT 

Director Harris requested the Consent Agenda below to be moved to the Regular Agenda for 

discussion. 

2. Approval of the minutes of the regular meeting October 21, 2019, and the called meeting 

October 24, 2019.  (CCD) 

3. Adopt a Resolution authorizing and directing the City Manager to enter into an agreement 

with Spears Engineering Company for engineering services for the Nix Creek Sewer Trunk 

Main project. (TWU) 

REGULAR 

2. Approval of the minutes of the regular meeting October 21, 2019, and the called meeting 

October 24, 2019.  (CCD) 

After a brief discussion, the motion to approve the minutes was made by Assistant Mayor Teeters, 

Seconded by Director Miner. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Teeters, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Odom, Director Miner and Director Peavy. 

The Mayor declared the resolution adopted by a vote of 7-0. 



 

3. Resolution No. 2019-41 authorized and directed the City Manager to enter into an agreement 

with Spears Engineering Company for engineering services for the Nix Creek Sewer Trunk 

Main project. (TWU) 

After a brief discussion the motion to adopt the resolution was made by Director Harris, Seconded 

by Director Hollibush. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Teeters, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Odom, Director Miner and Director Peavy. 

The Mayor declared the resolution adopted by a vote of 7-0. 

4. Resolution No. 2019-42 included the Municipal Health Benefit Fund Premium (MHBP) 

increase in the year end 2020 Budget due to reclassification. (FIN)  

After some discussion the motion to adopt the resolution was made by Director Hollibush, 

Seconded by Director Miner. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Teeters, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

Odom, Director Miner and Director Peavy. 

The Mayor declared the resolution adopted by a vote of 7-0. 

CITIZEN COMMUNICATION 

 Juanita Harris, PO Box 1591, Texarkana, Texas, founder of Teachers Support Teachers, 

introduced her organization to the Board. 

 

 Director Harris read a proclamation from Governor Asa Hutchinson declaring the month 

of November as Business and Industry Month.  He also asked everyone to shop locally on 

Black Friday. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

5. Resolution No. 2019-43 – made appointments to various boards and commissions. [City 

Beautiful Commission; Civil Service Commission; Electric Board of Review; Historic 

District Commission, and Planning Commission] (CCD) 

The Board went into Executive Session at 6:30 PM. 

[Director Harris left the Board Room at 6:30 PM. 

The Mayor reconvened the meeting at 6:46 PM. 

[Director Harris returned to the Board Room at 6:46 PM. 

City Attorney George Matteson read the resolution making appointments to the following boards 

and commissions: 

 City Beautiful Commission – Mary Bryant and Thomas Keefer 

 Civil Service Commission – Ricky Holder and Tim Johnson 

 Electric Board of Review – Thomas Thornsberry and Director Travis Odom 

 Planning Commission – Anderson Neal, Jr. and Randall Hickerson 



 

Motion to adopt the resolution made by Director Peavy, Seconded by Director Hollibush. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Teeters, Director Hollibush, Director Odom, Director 

Miner and Director Peavy. 

Voting Nay: Director Harris. 

The Mayor declared the resolution adopted by a vote of 6-1. 

NEXT MEETING DATE: Monday, November 18, 2019 

ADJOURN 

Motion to adjourn made by Assistant Mayor Teeters, Seconded by Director Miner. 

 Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Teeters, Director Harris, Director Hollibush, Director 

 Odom, Director Miner and Director Peavy. 

 The motion carried 7-0.  The meeting adjourned at 6:48 PM. 

 APPROVAL of the minutes on this 18th day of November, 2019. 

 

 

______________________________ 

Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

 

____________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution reappointing Personnel Administrator Melissa 

Edwards and Assistant Public Works Director Tracie Lee to the Public 

Facilities Board. (CCD) 

AGENDA DATE: November 18, 2019 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

REQUEST: Reappointing city staff to the Public Facilities Board 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: Personnel Administrator Melissa Edwards and Assistant Public Works 

Director Tracie Lee terms expire on November 30th.  Both would like to 

continue to serve. 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

The City Manager and staff recommend approval. 

EXHIBITS: Resolutions, Boards and Commissions Member list. 

 



RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to reappoint the following persons to the designated 

boards and commissions;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, that the following appointment is hereby approved:  

 

Board/Commission:   Appointee: 

Public Facilities Board   Melissa Edwards Personnel Administrator 

Public Facilities Board   Tracie Lee Assistant Public Works Director 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 18th day of November, 2019. 

 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

________________________________ 

George Matteson, City Attorney 



PUBLIC FACILITIES BOARD 
Authorized by A.C.A. 14-137-104----123 and Texarkana, Arkansas Code 2-131----137 

3 – YEAR TERMS 

 

 Appointment Term Date Term 

    

Melissa Edwards 

Personnel Administrator 

City Hall 

(870) 779-4974 

Resolution No. 2018-29 

Appointment 

08/06/2018 

11/30/2016----2019 1 

    

Tracie Lee 

Assistant Public Works Director 

City Hall 

(870) 779-1354 

Resolution No. 2016-77 

Appointment 

12/05/2016 

11/30/2016----2019 1 

    

Mary Beck 

Planning Secretary 

City Hall 

(870) 779-4944 

Resolution No. 2018-43 

Reappointment 

12/04/2018 

11/30/2018----2021 2 

    

Dr. Kenny Haskin 

City Manager 

City Hall 

(870) 779-4952 

Resolution No. 2018-43 

Reappointment 

12/04/2018 

11/30/2018----2021 2 

    

Heather Soyars 

City Clerk 

City Hall 

(870) 779-4995 

Resolution No. 2018-43 

Reappointment  

12/04/2018 

11/30/2018----2021 3 

 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution approving the FY 2020 Budget. (FIN) Finance 

Director TyRhonda Henderson  

AGENDA DATE: November 18, 2019 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Finance Department  

PREPARED BY: TyRhonda Henderson  

REQUEST:  

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: No 

SUMMARY: State law requires adoption of an annual budget.  The General Fund, 

Public Works Fund, and other funds summaries are provided.  This 

resolution proposes adoption of the FY 2020 Budget and amendments of 

the FY 2019 Budget to reflect year-end adjustments for the 2019 audit.  

On November 13, 2019, the Board of Directors, City Manager, and staff 

held a workshop session regarding the FY 2020 annual operating budget.  

The City Manager and staff held meetings with department heads 

regarding their FY 2020 Budget.  Please refer to the final budget and the 

attached combined summary of operating revenues and expenses.       

EXPENSE REQUIRED:  $44,385,571 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: $0 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

 $44,385,571 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

City Manager and staff recommend approval  

EXHIBITS: Presentation and FY 2020 Budget 

 



RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

WHEREAS, the fiscal year of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, is January 1, to December 

31; and  

WHEREAS, the law of the State of Arkansas requires adoption of an annual budget; and 

WHEREAS, the FY 2020 proposed budget has been reviewed by the Board of Directors 

in a workshop session, which was open to the public; and   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the City of 

Texarkana, Arkansas, that: 

SECTION 1: The FY 2020 Budget attached hereto and made a part hereof, along with 

amendments of the FY 2019 Budget to reflect year-end adjustments for the 2019 audit, is hereby 

adopted.  Said budget shall be kept on file in the office of the City Clerk.  

SECTION 2: The respective amounts of money allocated to each of the funds in the FY 

2020 Budget, including FY 2019 Budget revised amounts, are hereby allowed and appropriated.   

SECTION 3: Unless otherwise specifically required by separate ordinance or applicable 

law, the City Manager is authorized to select and hire individuals to fill all budgeted positions 

(now or hereafter coming vacant) contained in the FY 2020 Budget.   

PASSED AND APPROVED this 18th day of November, 2019. 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

________________________________ 

George Matteson, City Attorney 



Fiscal Year End 2020 
Budget

City of  Texarkana, AR

November 18, 2019

Dr. Kenny Haskin, City Manager 

TyRhonda Henderson, Finance Director 



GFOA 
Distinguished 

Budget 
Presentation Award

Fiscal Year End 2019



City-wide Summary 
of  Revenues and 

Expenditures
Fiscal Year End 2020

Summary of Revenues & Expenditures

ACTUAL BUDGET ESTIMATED PROPOSED

2018 2019 2019 2020

REVENUES

GENERAL FUND $       20,218,646 $       19,756,325 $       20,202,179 $       19,542,688 

PUBLIC WORKS FUND 7,638,492 7,846,237 8,037,668 8,046,257 

CDBG 189,373 477,169 256,878 1,362,169 

TWU 10,006,473 10,321,712 10,005,568 10,192,693 

OTHER FUNDS 609,798 589,951 628,998 611,656 

A & P FUND 1,171,147 1,161,440 1,266,451 1,284,400 

APPRORIATED FUND BALANCE 0 0 0 3,340,708 

TOTAL REVENUES $       39,833,929 $       40,152,834 $       40,397,742 $       44,380,571 

EXPENDITURES

GENERAL FUND $       18,566,501 $       19,884,839 $       21,029,692 $       21,021,172 

PUBLIC WORKS FUND 7,664,157 8,834,273 8,969,680 8,777,555 

CDBG 197,768 477,169 253,909 1,362,169 

TWU 10,098,995 11,209,683 10,684,263 11,316,313 

OTHER FUNDS 530,802 1,046,934 510,538 547,916 

A & P FUND 1,293,718 1,431,604 1,431,604 1,355,446 

APPRORIATED FUND BALANCE 0 0 0 0 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $       38,351,941 $       42,884,502 $       42,879,686 $       44,380,571 

NET CHANGE IN UNRESERVED /

UNAPPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE 1,481,988 (2,481,944) 0 



City-wide Major Revenues and Expenditures
Fiscal Year End 2020

Major Revenues Major Expenditures

38.4%

11.0%

6.3%2.8%7.6%

0.9%

2.9%

0.8%

3.9%

25.5%

PERSONNEL

CONTRACTUAL
SERVICES
CONTRIBUTIONS

DEBT SERVICE

CAPITAL OUTLAY

SERVICES

SUPPLIES

MAINTENANCE

OTHER

TWU

23.0%

23.1%

10.1%

5.9%

7.1%

7.7%

1.8%

21.3%

TEXARKANA WATER
UTILITIES

SALES TAX

REFUSE CHARGES

FRANCHISE RECEIPTS

PROPERTY TAX

STATE TURNBACK

FINES AND
FORFEITURES

ALL OTHER REVENUE



General Fund 

Primary operating 
fund of  the City

Primary revenue 
sources

Property taxes, sales taxes, 
franchise fees, grants, fees, and 

other general revenues

Funds are discretionary and 
have very few restrictions

Provides general operations 
of  the City 

Administration, Finance, City 
Clerk, Board of  Directors, 

Court, Probation, Police, Fire, 
Agencies, Animal Shelter, and 

Federal JAG Grant



General Fund
FY 2019 Budget Highlights

• Expenditure growth expected to exceed revenue growth

• Revenue growth = -0.08%

• Expenditure growth = 13.27%

• Expenditures expected to exceed revenues by $827,513

• Budget approved with $558,542 appropriated fund balance

• Emergency expenditure of  $250,000 for the Regency Building 

• Expenditures expected to be over budget by $1,144,853

• Mid year appropriation of  $875,000 for new Animal Shelter 

• Emergency expenditure of  $250,000 for the Regency Building 

• Estimated fund balance at year end is $4,848,774



General Fund 
Major Revenue Sources

FY 2020
• General Property Taxes

• Account for 13% of  budgeted revenue

• 2% increase budgeted

• Sales & Other Taxes 

• Account for 53% of  budgeted revenue

• 2% increase budgeted

• 1% of  the City’s 2.5% tax goes directly to the state as part of  the border city exemption 

• Franchise Receipts

• Account for 13% of  budgeted revenue

• 0% increase budgeted



General Fund
Fund Balance

Recommendation and as approved in 
Fiscal Policy

60 days of  expenditures in unrestricted 
fund balance

Anything less than 60 days starts to cause 
cash flow issues

General Fund Balance

$4.8 million estimated at end of  2019

$4.2 million estimated at end of  2020

• 73 days of  expenditures



General Fund
Budget Highlights – FY 2020

All departments cut 
expenditures by $525,000

0.5% COLA proposed for 
Fire and Police civil 
service personnel

City assumed increase in 
insurance premium due to 
change in classification  

Bi-State Contribution 
decreased by $1,095,000

Due to cumulative overage of  
$1,400,260 as of  year end 2018

$290,000 budgeted for Bi-State 
Reserve 



General Fund 

Budget Highlights – FY 2020
• Capital Outlay 

• Board of  Directors

• $15,000 for new camera in board room

• Police 

• $50,000 for 10 complete camera systems

• $150,000 for 5 new patrol cars

• Fire 

• $30,000 for staff  vehicles

• $100,000 for brush truck 

• Agencies

• $286,000 for streets and drainage

• $229,000 for Economic Development 



Public Works Fund
Budget Highlights - FY 2020

2020 Proposed Ending Fund Balance = 
$150,094

Other Street Projects

Drainage Improvements

Joey Lane Washout

Sanderson Lane – Road Improvements

Cherry Street – Road Improvements

Hwy 71 Bridge Lights

E. 50th Street Improvements



Questions?



1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141


	Top
	1. Minutes
	item_1_11182019_ccd_minutes
	11042019_minutes

	2. Public Facilities Board
	item_2_11182019_ccd_public facilities board
	item_2_11182019_resolution_reappointing city staff
	item_2_11182019_Public Facilities Board

	3. FY 2020 Budget
	item_4_11182019_2020 budget
	item_4_11182019_Resolution_FY2020 City Budget
	item_4_11182019_Presentation_FY 2020 board meeting
	item_4_11182019_Final

	Bottom

